
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

March 21, 2024 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 21, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – March 7, 2024           
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
AWARD PRESENTATION(S) – Officer Lifesaving Awards 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Public Hearing – Citizen Participation – 2024-25 Fiscal Year Budget Preparation.   

Explanation: A public hearing will be conducted to facilitate input from citizens for the City’s next fiscal year budget. 
This is the third of five (5) scheduled public hearings. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Presentation – New Planet Walk on Ludington Street – Manager. 

Explanation: Dan Young with the Delta Astronomical Society will give a brief presentation on the New Planet Walk on 
Ludington Street. 

 
2. Approval – Escanaba Public Safety Department Building Generator Bid - EPSD. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to purchase an 80KW Generac generator from Master 
Electric of Escanaba, MI , in the amount of $120,705.00. 

 
3. Approval - Street Closure Requests for Various Fundraising Events - Manager.   

Explanation: Cat-Man-Do's, 1223 Ludington Street is requesting the City Council approve the closure of the 1200 Block 
of Ludington Street for (Classic Car & Bike Nights May 8th (9th), June 12th (13th), July 10th (11th), August 14th (15th), and 
the closure of the 100 block of South 13th Street from Ludington Street to 1st Avenue South for the other Fundraisers 
(Car Show July 1st, Wheelin' Sportsmen August 24th, and Law Enforcement Torch Run September 11th (12th). 
 

4. Approval – State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) Loan Application - Manager. 
Explanation: City administration is requesting City Council approval to apply for a 20-year State Infrastructure Bank 
(SIB) loan in an amount of $2,000,000. This funding is necessary and will be used in coordination with the CWSRF 
project for full-width reconstruction and storm sewer construction on Ludington Street. 
 
 
 



Agenda – March 21, 2024 
 

5. Approval – State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) Loan Application – Manager. 
Explanation: City administration is requesting City Council approval to apply for a 15-year State Infrastructure Bank 
(SIB) loan in an amount of $2,000,000. This funding is necessary and will be used in coordination with the DWSRF 
projects for full-width reconstruction following water main replacement and a portion of the LSL replacement areas. 
 

6. Approval – Sanitation Services for the 2024-2025 Season – Recreation. 
Explanation: Two bids were mailed on January 22, 2024, with one bid being received from Stenberg Brothers of Bark 
River, MI. Bids were opened on March 4, 2024. Administration and the Recreation Advisory  Board are recommending 
approval of this bid. 
 

7. Approval – Ludington Park Food/Drink Concessions for the 2024 Season – Recreation. 
Explanation: Twenty-one bids were mailed on January 22, 2024, with one bid being received from Sticky Fingers of 
Gladstone, MI. Bids were opened on March 4, 2024. Administration and the Recreation Advisory Board are 
recommending approval of this bid. 
 

8. Approval – MDNRTF Grant Application Submittal and Resolution 24-02 – Recreation. 
Explanation: The Recreation Department is seeking City Council approval and authorization to apply for a Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant. The City of Escanaba is seeking $400,000 in Trust Fund monies to 
construct eight dedicated pickleball courts at Royce Park. There will be a $100,000 matching fund commitment (25% 
required) from the City of Escanaba. 
 

9. Approval – DWAM Water Service Material Investigation – Water Treatment Plant. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to hire Monchilov Sewer Services, LLC of Fairgrove, 
Michigan, with regard to the DWAM Grant to investigate existing water services throughout the City in an amount not 
to exceed $321,077.00. 
 

10. Approval – Willow Creek – South 32nd Street Property Agreement – Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval to sell unused property to all property owners located on 
the west side of South 32nd Street, subject to terms outlined in the attached memorandum. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          
 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
James R. McNeil 
City Manager 

  



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, March 7, 2024 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from February 15, 2024, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to add a 
discussion on lifting winter parking restrictions and making that new business item 
number 8.  
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as amended. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

• Nikki Linder – discussed NB-1. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1287, New D – Local Business Zoning District 
Ordinance of 2024, and Setting the Date of Thursday, April 4, 2024, for the Second 
Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption – Planning & Zoning. 
 

Administration requested the City Council to consider this the first reading of 



City Council Minutes  
March 7, 2024 – cont. 
 

2 
 

Ordinance No. 1287, New D – Local Business Zoning District Ordinance of 2024. 
Administration requested that the City Council set April 4, 2024, for the second 
reading, public hearing adoption of Ordinance No. 1287. 
 
NB-1 Flath moved, DuBord seconded, to reject the application and direct 
administration to bring the zoning map in alignment with the documents.  
 
Ayes: Flath, DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel  
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-2 Approval – Stump Grinding – Public Works. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to retain Dombrowski Tree Service for 
removal, restoration, and seed for 45 stumps with $31.50 for restoration for stump 
grinding. This was a budgeted item for the current amount of stumps. 
 
NB-2 Moore moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to retain Dombrowski Tree 
Service for removal, restoration, and seed for 45 stumps with $31.50 for restoration 
for stump grinding. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Beauchamp, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
  

 
NB-3 Approval – Trees Cut Down and Removed from Compost Area Bid – Public 
Works. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to have contractor cut down and remove 
approximately 4.5 acres of trees at no cost to the city. 
 
NB-3 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to have Bugle Contracting cut 
down and remove approximately 4.5 acres of trees at no cost to the city. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
   



City Council Minutes  
March 7, 2024 – cont. 
 

3 
 

NB-4 Approval – MPower Mapping Cleanup “Line Tracing” – WTP – Water 
Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to retain the services of MPower from 
Iron Mountain, MI, for water system map cleanup for the City of Escanaba Water 
Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $4,800.00. Money was budgeted and 
available for this type of work. 
 
NB-4 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to retain the services of MPower 
from Iron Mountain, MI, for water system map cleanup for the City of Escanaba Water 
Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $4,800.00. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
NB-5 Approval – Automation of Wastewater Plant – Wastewater Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to retain the services of Master 
Electric of Escanaba, MI, for the automation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant in an 
amount not to exceed $35,953.00 to include $5,000.00 in contingencies. $30,000.00 
was budgeted and available within the fiscal year. The remainder of the money was 
available through the wastewater fund. 
 
NB-5 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to retain the services of Master 
Electric of Escanaba, MI, for the automation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant in an 
amount not to exceed $35,953.00 to include $5,000.00 in contingencies. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
NB-6 Approval – Distribution Inventory Materials – ARPA 1 – Water Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to purchase Water Distribution 
inventory materials from ETNA of Marquette, MI, in the amount of $160,000.00 and 
Core and Main of DePere, WI, in the amount of $190,000.00 for a total not to exceed 
$350,000.00. Money was available and budgeted for this purchase in the current fiscal 
year. 
 
NB-6 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to purchase Water 



City Council Minutes  
March 7, 2024 – cont. 
 

4 
 

Distribution inventory materials from ETNA of Marquette, MI, in the amount of 
$160,000.00 and Core and Main of DePere, WI, in the amount of $190,000.00 for a 
total not to exceed $350,000.00.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel    
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
NB-7 Approval – Traffic Control Orders (TCO) No. 1015 – 1025 – Department of 
Public Safety. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval of TCO’s No. 1015 – 1025. Traffic Control 
Orders expire 90 days from the filing date unless approved by Council. The Traffic 
Control Orders call for the following: 

 No. 1015 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 4th Ave N and N 18th St. 
 No. 1016 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 8th Ave N and N 19th St. 
 No. 1017 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 10th Ave N and N 20th St. 
 No. 1018 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 11th Ave N and N 20th St. 
 No. 1019 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 12th Ave S and S 16th St. 
 No. 1020 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 14th Ave S and S 15th St. 
 No. 1021 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 17th Ave S and S 16th St. 
 No. 1022 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 18th Ave S and S 22nd St. 
 No. 1023 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 24th Ave S and S 22nd St. 
 No. 1024 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of Park Ave and 16th Ave S. 

No. 1025 – A Caution Autism Child Sign be placed in front of or near 930 S 17th 
         St. 
 

NB-7 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve of TCO’s No. 1015, 
1016,1017, 1018, 1019, 1020, 1021, 1022, 1023, 1024 & 1025. 

 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 

Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NB-8 Discussion – Lifting Winter Parking Restrictions. 
 

City Council held a discussion on what to do with winter parking restrictions for the 
remainder of the winter due to the warmer weather. 
 
Council discussed with Chief of police to leave the question of enforcement up to the 
Escanaba Public Safety Department in the case of snow. Public Safety Director John 



City Council Minutes  
March 7, 2024 – cont. 
 

5 
 

Gudwer said “we will not be enforcing (the) winter parking ordinance at this time, but 
if the snow does come, we will be enforcing the ordinance, if we get the snowfall”. 

 
 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES 
 

Council made the following appointment: 
 
Rick Curtis appointed to the Board of Equalization and Review, expiring November 1, 
2025. 
 
 

BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

• City Clerk Phil DeMay gave an update on the February 27th Election. Thanked his 
election inspectors and Deputy Clerk Tammy Weissert. 

•  Restaurant Week this week! Support your local restaurants.  
 

Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 





New Planet Walk Nearing Completion, March 2024. 

The Delta Astronomical Society (DAS) is nearing completion of its redesign and updates 
to Escanaba’s Planet Walk, a scale model walking tour of the Solar System.  

Originally created by DAS and installed along Ludington Street in Escanaba in 2002, 
many residents and visitors are familiar with its 13 informative station placards 
portraying the Sun and its family of planets, asteroids, etc. to scale with one another. 

Over the 22 years since the original black and white placards were installed, not only 
has the scientific information described on them become outdated, but the etched 
aluminum placards have become faded and corroded. 

In October 2019, DAS received a Grant from the Community Foundation of Delta 
County to update and replace the original placards with new versions printed in color.   
Our plan then was to install them in the original home-made frames by the end of 
summer 2020.  

We also received a $300 grant from the Escanaba Rotary Club, which we intended to 
use to purchase a limited supply of updated brochures. But the COVID Pandemic 
intervened, disrupting and delaying our plans. 

In November 2022 we held an Astronomy program and free observing night for the 
Gladstone 5th Grade science classes. In response, they donated $250 to our club which 
we decided in 2023 to use toward updating Planet Walk. 

In 2023 we began discussions with the new owners of Genesis Graphics about durable 
color printing and presentation options for a redesigned Planet Walk. We discovered 
that several of the placard frames and a couple posts were in need of repair.  

Over the winter of 2023-24, we completely redesigned and updated the 13 Planet Walk 
station placards. In consultation with Genesis Graphics we reformatted all 13 placards 
to 12x18 inches; a standard size that makes them easier to read and more appealing. 
We also added QR code links to brief video clips on each station placard.     

In January 2024, we contracted with Genesis Graphics to print and produce the 
placards in full color on their “InterpreTUFF” vinyl coated, U-V fade and scratch resistant 
material. Each print will be affixed to a strong polymer-cored aluminum laminate board. 
In our installation they should have an expected lifespan of 7 to 10 years or more.  

We are replacing the old wooden frames with new, powder-coated custom steel frames 
mounted on the original 6x6 wooden posts, where possible.  

Costs and Funding.   

Including the grants described above we (DAS) currently have about $2550 on hand 
earmarked for this project. Total costs are estimated to run about $5000. We are 
seeking “sponsors” for the 13 new station placards and frames at $200 each.  



Planet Walk
Scale Model Tour of The Solar System 

The Sun and Planets are shown to Scale above. 

Walking distances between the planets are at the same scale.  



A Visual and Physical Scale of Reference

From where we stand here on 
Earth our world seems pretty big. 

But, in comparison to Jupiter or 
the Sun, it’s actually quite tiny.

Distances between the planets are 
so incredibly vast they are almost 
impossible to comprehend.   

What a person needs is a frame of reference---a way to visualize and experience
the relative sizes of the bodies in our solar system and the distances between them.  

Earth: You Are Here



The Original Planet Walk, 

Installed 2002

We Created the Original Planet Walk and Installed it on Ludington in 2002.  
The Purpose of Planet Walk Was to Provide that Frame of Reference.  



Our Day Star, the Sun is a searing hot ball 
of gas 93 million miles away. 

At its equator it’s 865 thousand miles wide. 
To make it manageable we shrank it down to 
a 1 foot diameter sphere. 

That set the scale for Planet Walk.
1 foot = 865,000 miles. 

Everything on our model follows this scale.
The Earth, for example, is a 0.11 inch BB,
Located just 107 feet away from the Sun. 

Our Original Planet Walk Provided that Scale of Reference.

Sun & Earth to Scale



One Picture Is Worth 
  a Thousand Words 

Best Hubble Photo of Pluto, 2012.

Pluto, 2015. New Horizons
NASA-Johns Hopkins Univ.,
Southwest Research Instit.
Univ. of Arizona. Real color.

The original Planet Walk was as good as we 
could make it with the science, photos, and 
materials available in 2002. But it has done 
its job and it is time to update it. 



THE NEW PLANET WALK

In the fall of 2019 the Community Foundation for Delta County awarded us a grant to 
upgrade Planet Walk with new, full color placards reflecting the latest science.



Life Had Other Plans

Then  COVID came, changing 
priorities, shelving plans, 
postponing many private and 
most public activities. 
Delta Astronomical Society was 
no exception. But we made it.  

During 2022-23 we completely redesigned and reformatted Planet Walk with new 
graphics, updated science, and we contracted for their production and printing 
by the new owners and staff at Genesis Graphics. We think you will be impressed.



Original Planet Walk Placards vs New Planet Walk Placards 

Left, Old Pluto Placard, Print area 11.75 wide x 10.5 high.  
Photo 2022,  D. Young. 

Right, New Pluto Placard, proof Dec 2023. 
12 x 18, full size with 10 x 16 print area.
Sun bleeds out under frame, left.   



The Important Numbers– The Cost of Our New Planet Walk.

13 Planet Walk Placards, Including Set Up, Printing and Production: $118.54 each. Total $1541

 2 Sample Placards on PVC board for Publicity and Promotion $62 each   $124

 13 Powder Coated Steel Frames, 12.5/8 x 18.5/8 inches  $242 each (3146) 

  4 Fasteners each and other prep to mount on current posts. $8 per frame, est. ($104)
   Total for framing, approx.  $250/frame  $3250

 Grand Total for New Planet Walk Station Placards and Frames:    $4915 
  
 Funds Committed to Planet Walk Upgrades (2-1-24):
 Community Foundation Grant, Nov. 2019  $2000  $2000  $2000
 Rotary Grant, 2020      $300  $300
 2022 Donation from Jones Elementary 5th Grade Class  $250  $250 $2550

 Expenses Paid to date (2-20-24) Placards Printing & Production $1665 Cash on hand: $885 
         Funds Needed to Complete New Planet Walk: $2365.* 

*Please Note: These numbers do not include the costs of incidentals such as brochure holders, promotion,   
cleaning, staining, and replacing broken station posts, or ongoing maintenance and upkeep.
• $2365 / 13  = $182.  Sponsor a station Placard for $200. 
• Make your check to DAS, note Planet Walk, c/o DAS Treas. 330 S. 16th St. Escanaba, MI 49829  



How You Can Help

1. Adopt a Placard: $200 each
2. Make a Cash Donation  
3. Allow DAS to Present the New 

Planet Walk to Your Group
4. Host a fundraiser for Planet Walk

To Donate: Make checks to DAS note Planet Walk
c/o DAS Treas. 330 S 16th St, Escanaba, MI 49829

Photo: Jupiter, with Great Red Spot.  Hubble Telescope.
Largest Planet in Solar System, 88,882 miles wide.
Orbits 485 million miles from the Sun. 
At our scale, a 1.25 Inch ball, 550 feet from the Sun.  











































































































































 
 
 
 
P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948                                                              (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755 
 
 
 

Mission Statement: 

Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing 
quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

James McNeil 

City of Escanaba 

410 Ludington Street 

Escanaba, MI 49829 

jmcneil@escanaba.org 

 

March 13, 2024 

 

RE: State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) Loans 

 

City Administration is requesting approval of two SIB loan applications, each for $2,000,000. 

The SIB program provides favorable financing terms and flexibility needed for large projects. 

The last quoted loans quoted at 3.25% for 15- and 20-year loans. 

 

As we have previously discussed, State Revolving Fund (SRF) water and wastewater funding 

can provide funding for restoration of the disturbed area, often limited to half the street. As part 

of the approved DWSRF ARP 1.0 project plan, the City included non-grant street reconstruction 

to be paid for by the City Street Fund. Our goal is to seek easier implementation under one 

contractor, utilize economies of scale, and reduce costs over the long-term utilizing the “one-dig” 

approach. 

 

Now the City faces nearly $60 million in grant awards with an opportunity to complete large-

scale street work. In addition to the pragmatism of project coordination, there are components of 

the SRF projects that necessitate additional street funding. On the DWSRF side, open-trench 

water main replacement is best executed with full-width reconstruction. The city intends to pave 

streets impacted by LSL work to the greatest extent possible, focusing on specific conditions 

such as the compaction issues on 5th Avenue South. 

 

Ludington Street has been discussed for years, and the CWSRF project has provided a means to 

a project. CWSRF will be constructing a new lift station, replacing sanitary sewer mains, 

removing roof drains, and providing the majority of restoration work. MEDC RAP 2.0 funding 

will be another source of funding used to complete this project, with DDA participation. The SIB 

loan would provide for the remainder of the street to be reconstructed, including curb and gutter. 

In addition to restoration, the city intends to construct two 48” storm sewers on Ludington Street 

and upsize one outfall. Additional storm sewer phases will be required to meet a recommended 

design standard. 

 

City streets, funded by Act 51 revenue, provide approximately $600,000 per year of construction 

type work after maintenance and plowing. Not only does the overall cost of the projects create a 

need for financing, but timing is another problem solved by financing. For example, we may see 

a need for $2.5 million in just the first year, mostly attributable to the timing of water main 

replacement. 



 
 
 
 
P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948                                                              (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755 
 
 
 

Mission Statement: 

Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing 
quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

 

Below is a preliminary estimate of non-grant funding requirements for the proposed work: 

 

NON-PARTICIPATING PROJECT COSTS (CITY STREET) 

Project Start End Description Overall Cost FY 24-25 Cost 

DWSRF ARPA 1.0 2024 2026 

Watermain & LSL replacement. 
Full-width street reconstruction 
in watermain areas.          1,676,627           1,676,627  

DWSRF ARPA 2.0 2024 2026 

Watermain & LSL replacement. 
Full-width street reconstruction 
in watermain areas.          1,188,742              308,880  

CWSRF ARPA 1.0 2024 2026 

Ludington Street Lift Sation, 
Sanitary, Storm, and Street 
Reconstruction          2,250,000              500,000  

             5,115,369           2,485,507  

 

 

The City can utilize Act 51 revenues and General Fund balance to repay these loans. However, 

we are also seeking additional sources of funding to offset costs or to provide a separate revenue 

source for repayment. Some of these sources include Congressional Directed Spending (CDS), 

STORM Act, and Brownfield tax increment financing. 

 

The condition of City streets is not desirable, and they will only worsen without an aggressive 

work schedule. The efforts described above, along with our new patching methods, will 

meaningfully move the needle in the right direction. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
James McNeil 

City Manager 

City of Escanaba 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



-------------------------

STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK 
Page 1 of 4 

Michigan Department 

of Transportation 

1784 (05/20) INITIAL PROJECT APPLICATION 

Information required by Michigan Department of Transportation, by authority of the 

National Highway System Designation Act of 1995, to apply for funding. MOOT 1784 (6102) 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

1. APPLICANT AGENCY

MOOT Economic Development Corp. Airport/Port Authority 

State or Regional Government County Road Commission Transit Agency 

Other (Specify): 

2. APPLICANT NAME DATE SUBMITTED 

3. PROJECT NAME PROJECT ZIP CODE 

I I 4. APPLICANT MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

5. CONTACT PERSON TITLE PHONE NO I 
CONTACT PERSON'S ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

I I 
E-MAIL ADDRESS I

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

6. ROUTE NAME/ FACILITY

LOCATION 

MOOT REGION COUNTY CITY/ VILLAGE/ TWP. 

I I 
7. TYPE OF PROJECT HIGHWAY TRANSIT OTHER (Specify): _______________ _ 

8. IS THIS PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR FEDERAL AID? Yes No 

9. PROJECT DESCRIPTION (Provide brief description here and more detail in Attachment A.) 

10. PROJECT BENEFITS (Provide brief description here and more detail in Attachment B. i.e., Importance of project to community, how it 
promotes economic development.) 

RISK ASSESSMENT (If agency does not receive loan, it may not (what?)) 

11. DOES THE PROJECT HAVE THE SUPPORT OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT(S) THAT ARE IMPACTED BY THE PROJECT? 

Yes No 

12. DOES THE PROJECT HAVE THE SUPPORT OF THE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY (e.g. County Road Commission, City Street Administration,

Local Transit Agency, etc.) WITH JURISDICTION OVER THE FACILITY? Yes No 

Yes No 

If yes, is the Project on an approved MPO Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP)?

13. IS THE PROJECT WITHIN A METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) BOUNDARY? 

Yes No 
If No, is the Project on an approved State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP)? Yes No 

Yes No 

If yes, is it on the STIP?

14. IS THE PROJECT ON A STATE HIGHWAY TRUNKLINE?

Yes No 



Page 2 of 4 MOOT 1784 (05/20) 

PROJECT FINANCING 

15. PROJECT STATUS (Please explain current status of the project, e.g. planning, design, project start and completion dates.) 

ESTIMATE PROJECT CONSTRUCTION TIMELINE START DATE END DATE 

16. TOTAL PROJECT COST SIB LOAN AMOUNT REQUESTED 

17. PROPOSED PROJECT FINANCING SOURCES (Do not include SIB Repayment Source)

STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK $ 

FEDERAL AID $ 

ACT 51 FUNDS $ 

ASSESSMENTS $ 

USER PAYMENTS/FEES $ 

LOCAL FUNDS $ 

OTHER (Specify): _____________ _ $ 

18. TYPE OF FINANCING ASSISTANCE REQUESTED 19. REPAYMENT TERMS REQUESTED 
LOAN CREDIT ENHANCEMENT 

20. REPAYMENT SOURCE FOR SIB LOAN 

$ 

$ 

$ 

TOTAL$ 

21. PROPOSED SECURITY / COLLATERAL 

22. ARE YOU AN ACT 51 AGENCY? No If yes, what is your annual Act 51 allocation? __________ _ Yes 

CHECKLIST 

23. CHECK ALL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS THAT ARE ATTACHED: 

ATTACHMENT A - Description of Proposed Project ATTACHMENT B - Benefits of Proposed Project 

CERTIFICATION 

24. SIGNATURE TITLE DATE 

I I 
Completed Initial Project Application and all applicable attachments may be submitted for initiation of the SIB review process to: 

State Infrastructure Bank SIB Coordinators: 
Michigan Department of Transportation 
Office Of Economic Development Jessica Pierce 

Van Wagoner Building 
425 W. Ottawa Street 
P. 0. Box 30050 

Tyler Belisle-Toler Lansing, Michigan 48909 



MOOT 1784 (05/20) Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT A: DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROJECT 

In your description, include an explanation of the problem that this project is designed to address. 
Please include a map. Attach additional pages if necessary. 



MOOT 1784 (05/20) Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT B: BENEFITS OF PROPOSED PROJECT 

Discuss how SIB financing will help attract new public/private investment, reduce project costs and accelerate project 
completion. Identify other project benefits, e.g. access, mobility, economic, preservation, environmental. 

Attach additional pages if necessary. 







 
 
 
 
P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948                                                              (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755 
 
 
 

Mission Statement: 

Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing 
quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

James McNeil 

City of Escanaba 

410 Ludington Street 

Escanaba, MI 49829 

jmcneil@escanaba.org 

 

March 13, 2024 

 

RE: State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) Loans 

 

City Administration is requesting approval of two SIB loan applications, each for $2,000,000. 

The SIB program provides favorable financing terms and flexibility needed for large projects. 

The last quoted loans quoted at 3.25% for 15- and 20-year loans. 

 

As we have previously discussed, State Revolving Fund (SRF) water and wastewater funding 

can provide funding for restoration of the disturbed area, often limited to half the street. As part 

of the approved DWSRF ARP 1.0 project plan, the City included non-grant street reconstruction 

to be paid for by the City Street Fund. Our goal is to seek easier implementation under one 

contractor, utilize economies of scale, and reduce costs over the long-term utilizing the “one-dig” 

approach. 

 

Now the City faces nearly $60 million in grant awards with an opportunity to complete large-

scale street work. In addition to the pragmatism of project coordination, there are components of 

the SRF projects that necessitate additional street funding. On the DWSRF side, open-trench 

water main replacement is best executed with full-width reconstruction. The city intends to pave 

streets impacted by LSL work to the greatest extent possible, focusing on specific conditions 

such as the compaction issues on 5th Avenue South. 

 

Ludington Street has been discussed for years, and the CWSRF project has provided a means to 

a project. CWSRF will be constructing a new lift station, replacing sanitary sewer mains, 

removing roof drains, and providing the majority of restoration work. MEDC RAP 2.0 funding 

will be another source of funding used to complete this project, with DDA participation. The SIB 

loan would provide for the remainder of the street to be reconstructed, including curb and gutter. 

In addition to restoration, the city intends to construct two 48” storm sewers on Ludington Street 

and upsize one outfall. Additional storm sewer phases will be required to meet a recommended 

design standard. 

 

City streets, funded by Act 51 revenue, provide approximately $600,000 per year of construction 

type work after maintenance and plowing. Not only does the overall cost of the projects create a 

need for financing, but timing is another problem solved by financing. For example, we may see 

a need for $2.5 million in just the first year, mostly attributable to the timing of water main 

replacement. 



 
 
 
 
P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948                                                              (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755 
 
 
 

Mission Statement: 

Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing 
quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

 

Below is a preliminary estimate of non-grant funding requirements for the proposed work: 

 

NON-PARTICIPATING PROJECT COSTS (CITY STREET) 

Project Start End Description Overall Cost FY 24-25 Cost 

DWSRF ARPA 1.0 2024 2026 

Watermain & LSL replacement. 
Full-width street reconstruction 
in watermain areas.          1,676,627           1,676,627  

DWSRF ARPA 2.0 2024 2026 

Watermain & LSL replacement. 
Full-width street reconstruction 
in watermain areas.          1,188,742              308,880  

CWSRF ARPA 1.0 2024 2026 

Ludington Street Lift Sation, 
Sanitary, Storm, and Street 
Reconstruction          2,250,000              500,000  

             5,115,369           2,485,507  

 

 

The City can utilize Act 51 revenues and General Fund balance to repay these loans. However, 

we are also seeking additional sources of funding to offset costs or to provide a separate revenue 

source for repayment. Some of these sources include Congressional Directed Spending (CDS), 

STORM Act, and Brownfield tax increment financing. 

 

The condition of City streets is not desirable, and they will only worsen without an aggressive 

work schedule. The efforts described above, along with our new patching methods, will 

meaningfully move the needle in the right direction. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
James McNeil 

City Manager 

City of Escanaba 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



-------------------------

STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK 
Page 1 of 4 

Michigan Department 

of Transportation 

1784 (05/20) INITIAL PROJECT APPLICATION 

Information required by Michigan Department of Transportation, by authority of the 

National Highway System Designation Act of 1995, to apply for funding. MOOT 1784 (6102) 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

1. APPLICANT AGENCY

MOOT Economic Development Corp. Airport/Port Authority 

State or Regional Government County Road Commission Transit Agency 

Other (Specify): 

2. APPLICANT NAME DATE SUBMITTED 

3. PROJECT NAME PROJECT ZIP CODE 

I I 4. APPLICANT MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

5. CONTACT PERSON TITLE PHONE NO I 
CONTACT PERSON'S ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

I I 
E-MAIL ADDRESS I

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

6. ROUTE NAME/ FACILITY

LOCATION 

MOOT REGION COUNTY CITY/ VILLAGE/ TWP. 

I I 
7. TYPE OF PROJECT HIGHWAY TRANSIT OTHER (Specify): _______________ _ 

8. IS THIS PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR FEDERAL AID? Yes No 

9. PROJECT DESCRIPTION (Provide brief description here and more detail in Attachment A.) 

10. PROJECT BENEFITS (Provide brief description here and more detail in Attachment B. i.e., Importance of project to community, how it 
promotes economic development.) 

RISK ASSESSMENT (If agency does not receive loan, it may not (what?)) 

11. DOES THE PROJECT HAVE THE SUPPORT OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT(S) THAT ARE IMPACTED BY THE PROJECT? 

Yes No 

12. DOES THE PROJECT HAVE THE SUPPORT OF THE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY (e.g. County Road Commission, City Street Administration,

Local Transit Agency, etc.) WITH JURISDICTION OVER THE FACILITY? Yes No 

Yes No 

If yes, is the Project on an approved MPO Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP)?

13. IS THE PROJECT WITHIN A METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) BOUNDARY? 

Yes No 
If No, is the Project on an approved State Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP)? Yes No 

Yes No 

If yes, is it on the STIP?

14. IS THE PROJECT ON A STATE HIGHWAY TRUNKLINE?

Yes No 



Page 2 of 4 MOOT 1784 (05/20) 

PROJECT FINANCING 

15. PROJECT STATUS (Please explain current status of the project, e.g. planning, design, project start and completion dates.) 

ESTIMATE PROJECT CONSTRUCTION TIMELINE START DATE END DATE 

16. TOTAL PROJECT COST SIB LOAN AMOUNT REQUESTED 

17. PROPOSED PROJECT FINANCING SOURCES (Do not include SIB Repayment Source)

STATE INFRASTRUCTURE BANK $ 

FEDERAL AID $ 

ACT 51 FUNDS $ 

ASSESSMENTS $ 

USER PAYMENTS/FEES $ 

LOCAL FUNDS $ 

OTHER (Specify): _____________ _ $ 

18. TYPE OF FINANCING ASSISTANCE REQUESTED 19. REPAYMENT TERMS REQUESTED 
LOAN CREDIT ENHANCEMENT 

20. REPAYMENT SOURCE FOR SIB LOAN 

$ 

$ 

$ 

TOTAL$ 

21. PROPOSED SECURITY / COLLATERAL 

22. ARE YOU AN ACT 51 AGENCY? No If yes, what is your annual Act 51 allocation? __________ _ Yes 

CHECKLIST 

23. CHECK ALL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS THAT ARE ATTACHED: 

ATTACHMENT A - Description of Proposed Project ATTACHMENT B - Benefits of Proposed Project 

CERTIFICATION 

24. SIGNATURE TITLE DATE 

I I 
Completed Initial Project Application and all applicable attachments may be submitted for initiation of the SIB review process to: 

State Infrastructure Bank SIB Coordinators: 
Michigan Department of Transportation 
Office Of Economic Development Jessica Pierce 

Van Wagoner Building 
425 W. Ottawa Street 
P. 0. Box 30050 

Tyler Belisle-Toler Lansing, Michigan 48909 



MOOT 1784 (05/20) Page 3 of 4 

ATTACHMENT A: DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED PROJECT 

In your description, include an explanation of the problem that this project is designed to address. 
Please include a map. Attach additional pages if necessary. 



MOOT 1784 (05/20) Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENT B: BENEFITS OF PROPOSED PROJECT 

Discuss how SIB financing will help attract new public/private investment, reduce project costs and accelerate project 
completion. Identify other project benefits, e.g. access, mobility, economic, preservation, environmental. 

Attach additional pages if necessary. 

























































 
 
 
 
P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948                                                              (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755 
 
 
 

Mission Statement: 

Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing 
quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

James McNeil 

City of Escanaba 

410 Ludington Street 

Escanaba, MI 49829 

jmcneil@escanaba.org 

 

March 13, 2024 

 

RE: Willow Creek – South 32nd Street Property Sales 

 
The land between Willow Creek and the rear property line of property owners on South 32nd Street has 

been a topic of discussion for several years. The City has researched the issue and is prepared to move 

forward. 

 

Willow Creek is not owned by the City – it is owned by the State of Michigan. The City owns the Willow 

Creek Road ROW, and approximately 75’ between the creek and the rear property line for each privately 

owned parcel. 

 

There are several property owners that have formally expressed interest, and others who must still provide 

an answer. Property like this is difficult to value as a standalone parcel as it is landlocked and small. It is 

the job of City Administration to maximize total consideration. This neighborhood is an area prone to 

flooding during a period of high groundwater due to elevation and stormwater infrastructure challenges. 

This is also an area with high suspected sump pump discharge into the sanitary sewer system, 

contributing to our inflow and infiltration problems. 

 

All property and infrastructure characteristics considered, the most value maximizing offer would 

include: 

 

1) The property owner shall pay for all closing costs, i.e. survey, title examination and insurance, 

deed preparation and recording, etc. There will be no additional charge for the property. 

2) The property owner shall permanently disconnect their sump pump from the sanitary sewer and 

direct all sump pump discharge to the rear yard. This will alleviate stress on existing stormwater 

infrastructure, and significantly reduce wastewater I&I. A inspection by the City will be 

mandatory, and failure of these conditions will result in reversion of the property to the City. 

 

Instead of asking for thirteen induvial approvals, City Administration is seeking approval to agree to these 

terms for all interested property owners in this area. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
James McNeil 

City Manager 

City of Escanaba 



300       3401      

404       

2915      

405       

3001      

406       

410       

414       

418       

424       

403       

512       

514       

518       

522       

509       

513       

517       

521       

524       3004      
3010      

428       

500       

506       

512       

516       

520       

3016      

526       3110      3116      3120      

523       

521       

519       

515       

513       

3200      

530       

528       

524       

520       

516       

3110      

3116      

3120      

423       

419       

415       

409       

510       

506       

428       

424       

418       

414       

404       

2635      

3000      

2900      

2901      

404       

409       408       

413       
412       

417       

418       

421       

424       

425       

516       

430       
429       

503       500       

507       

504       

511       

510       

518       
515       

520       
523       

2916      2900      

3
0

th
 S

t
S

 3
0

th
 S

t

S
 3

1
s

t 
S

t

5th Ave S 5th Ave S

W
il
lo

w
 C

r
e

e
k

 R
d

W
il
lo

w
 C

r
e

e
k
 R

d

W
il
lo

w
 C

r
e

e
k
 R

d

4th Ave S

S
 3

2
n

d
 S

t

3rd Ave S

US 2 US 2 US 2


	03.21.2024 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	Agenda Packet
	Agenda Packet
	MX-M363N_20240314_154140
	Agenda Packet
	cm03.07.2024
	NB-1
	NB-1
	Funding Appeal-Planet Walk-Feb 2024.
	Planet Walk Promotional Power Point-March 11-2024
	Default Section
	Slide 1: Planet Walk Scale Model Tour of The Solar System 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8

	Untitled Section
	Slide 9
	Slide 10



	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20240313_121506
	NB-2
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10

	NB-3
	NB-3
	CatManDo

	NB-4
	NB-4
	SIB Memo
	ESCANABA SIB - CWSRF FINAL
	MX-M453N_20240312_080023

	NB-5
	NB-5
	SIB Memo
	ESCANABA SIB - DWSRF FINAL
	MX-M453N_20240312_080023

	NB-6
	NB-7
	NB-8
	NB-9
	MX-M363N_20240314_110033



	NB-10
	NB-10
	Willow Creek Memo
	South 32nd Street Owner Map



	BOX1: 
	8: 1
	10: No
	11: Yes
	12: No
	13: No
	14: No
	15: No
	16: No
	19: No
	1: Off
	4: Off
	2: Off
	5: Off
	9: Off
	6: Yes
	811: 1
	911: Off
	1011: 3
	17: No
	18: Off
	20: Yes
	20a: No

	TEXT1: 
	26: 
	1: Fall 2024-Fall 2026
	0: 2250000

	1: City of Escanaba
	2: 3/22/24
	3: City of Escanaba CWSRF Non-Particpating Street Reconstruction and Stormwater
	4: 49829
	5: PO BOX 948
	6: Escanaba
	7: MI
	8: 49829
	9: James McNeil
	10: City Manager
	11: 9067897322
	12: 410 Ludington Street
	13: Escanaba
	14: MI
	15: 49829
	16: Escanaba, Michigan
	17: Superior Region
	18: Delta
	19: City of Escanaba
	192: Road & Storm Sewer
	20: The City of Escanaba has been awarded approximately $20 million in CWSRF funding. The city is coordinating efforts to match non-participating funding to complete full-width street reconstruction. The city will be installing new storm sewer, an improvement to the existing undersized infrastructure. Roof drain removal from the sanitary sewer elevates the importance of new storm sewer. 
	21: The CWSRF project provides underground utility upgrades and partial reconstruciton. The city wishes to use the same contractor for a "one-dig" approach. This is a large and unique opportunity that provides several benefits to the City of Escanaba.
	22: If the city does not receive SIB funding, projects could be delayed until the completion of a bond issue. Alternatively, full-width reconstruction and critical stormwater improvements could be removed from the project. This would have servere consequences.
	23: In design - bidding 2nd quarter 2024, CWSRF funding secured
	24: 8/1/24
	25: 10/31/26
	27: 2000000
	28: 2000000
	29: 
	30: 250000
	31: 
	32: 
	33: 
	34: 
	35: 
	36: 20 Year Repayment
	37: ACT 51 FUNDS
	39: CITY GENERAL FUND
	41: 
	43: 2000000
	44: ACT 51 FUNDING AND CITY GENERAL FUND

	repay1: 
	38: 2000000

	repay2: 
	40: 

	repay3: 
	42: 

	text1: 
	45: 1881873
	46: CITY MANAGER
	47: 03/08/2024
	48: In 2023, the City of Escanaba pursued a funding opportunity through the Clean Water State Revolving Funds (CWSRF) and EGLE.  The purpose of the funding for Escanaba was for the replacement of sanitary lift station and rehabilitation of old sanitary sewer lines for the reduction of Infiltration and Inflow (I&I) within the sewer system.  Currently, the City of Escanaba is under an Administrative Consent Order (ACO) with EGLE to remove I&I from the sanitary sewer collection system.

The City was fortunate to obtain a ARP Grant for the sanitary sewer rehabilitation and lift station replacement in the amount of $19 million.    Although this is a great opportunity for the City, it also creates financial issues regarding work not eligible under the CWSRF Program.   Eligible work includes street restoration work items that are associated with the sanitary sewer.  This limits work to partial curb, sidewalk, and street paving items.

Ludington Street is the route that connects residents and visitors to the downtown area of Escanaba.  The work proposed under the CWSRF Project includes sanitary sewer replacement, storm sewer upgrades and restoration items such as HMA paving, curb and gutter, and sidewalks.  Areas under the influence of the sanitary sewer are eligible for cost reimbursement.

In addition, the City received a MEDC enhancement grant for streetscape project along portion of Ludington Street.  This is an opportunity to utilize other funding sources complete added portions of the work on Ludington Street.   The $600,000 project is 50% grant and 50% local city funds.

To have a complete street replacement project, the City of Escanaba will need to fund added storm sewer, sidewalk, curb & gutter and HMA paving that are not eligible under the CWSRF program or MEDC Grant.   Included in this attachment, you will find the location map, road cross section and a restoration participation drawing.  These attachments outline the fundable items under CWSRF versus the non-fundable items that will require funding through the City.

Work requested for the SIB Loan includes HMA surface overlay from Water Plant Road to 2nd Street.  From 2nd Street to 9th Street, work would include adding an additional storm sewer along Ludington Street, and the restoration items (sidewalk, curb & gutter, HMA paving).  We estimate the cost to be $2,250,000 for the added work.

	49: The SIB Loan will allow this project to move forward with construction and have a complete street appreciation for the downtown area of Escanaba.  The coordination of SIB, CWSRF, MEDC, and City funds will provide scale and efficiencies experienced today and into the future.

The replacement of old and leaking sanitary sewer and adding additional storm sewer will dramatically improve the conditions of the infrastructure and roadway within the City of Escanaba.  The project will address water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer needs that have been outlined by EGLE mandates.  Updating the sanitary and storm sewers in the downtown area will create a healthy and vibrant community.  

With the size of this project, many construction related jobs will be created locally and local businesses will benefit from the construction work.  Material suppliers, grocery stores and gas stations, lodging and other service-oriented businesses will benefit economically from the project.  Environmental concerns will be addressed and the new infrastructure for the city will be a health benefit to the public.


	Return page 1: 
	Attachement A & B: 
	ClearForm: 
	TEXT: Municipality
	EMAIL: jmcneil@escanaba.org
	ROUTE: Ludington Street Area


